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CHAIR MATEO: .. . (gavel) . .. Policy Committee meeting for August 14t\ 2007 will come to
order. For the record, the Members present with us this afternoon, we have
Member Baisa,
Member Johnson,
Member
Medeiros,
Member Molina,
Member Pontanilla. Excused for this meeting is Member Victorino. And to be joining us
later.. .later this afternoon is Member Hokama and Member Anderson. Also with us this
afternoon, Members ... from the Administration we have, from Corporation Counsel, we
have Adrianne Heely and Jeffrey Ueoka. And from our Committee Staff, we have our
Secretary, Ms. Sakamoto; we have also our Analyst, we have Ms. Revels; and our
Legislative ...Attorney, we have Ms. Kirstin Hamman. Members, we have three items
on our agenda today. And the Chair expects to get through all three this afternoon. But
before we go into these items, we have one individual signed up for testimony this
afternoon. And that individual is Mr. John Andersen, who will be testifying on both
Policy Item 33 and POL-8(2). And, Mr. Andersen, just for the sake of sharing our
ground rules, you will have three minutes to testify, a minute to conclude. In your
opening, please be sure to recognize yourself and let us know whether you represent an
organization or not. Thank you .
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you, Chair Mateo. And good afternoon, Committee Members. My
name is John Andersen, I'm the Executive Director ofNa Hale 0 Maui, our community
land trust. I won't take anywhere near the three minutes 'cause I'm here just to, for two
simple things. Number one, to urge you to resolve the policy issues on the First-Time
Home Buyers' Program as soon as possible. We are involved with KSD Hawaii .. .in the
development of 13 affordable homes in Makawao. And KSD is telling me that
occupancy may be available before the end of this year. And this program is gonna be
critical for the buyers for those homes. So I'd like to see the program completed before
the houses are completed. And I urge you to resolve that. And the other is to very
simply say thank you for beginning to address the incentives for the workforce housing
in ... POL-S. You have before you an ordinance to address reduction of some of the fees.
Great place to start. Let's keep going on the efforts to make this workforce housing
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ordinance a really workable ... policy so that we can get many, many more affordable
houses built. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Andersen. Members, questions? Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Good afternoon,
Mr. Andersen, and thank you for your comments. My question is related to your
comments on the First-Time Home Buyers' Program. Just a little bit more clarification
on the KSD project in Makawao. This is a 13-unit project. How many homes have been
constructed thus far?
MR. ANDERSEN: There are eight homes that are being rehabilitated. And those will be the
first to be completed. Then there are five new houses being constructed on the parcel.
But I viewed, along with the Department Head... Vanessa Medeiros and JoAnn Ridao,
Housing Commissioner--we viewed last week the progress on one of the rehabs. It's
almost 90 percent done. And all I can say is we've gotta get a family in there as soon as
possible. We'll have eight ofthem ready to go, hopefully, by the end of the year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And the families that are, I guess .. .interested in these
homes ... they would be perfect, I guess, candidates for support program like this-MR. ANDERSEN: In my mind, yes, it's already come up in discussions. We really need to
have this program functioning so we can get them in from the beginning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair. Mr. Andersen, thank you for being
here, for your testimony. I just have a... one question. On that project that you discussed
and that Councilmember Molina just asked you questions on, who would that project be
available to?
MR. ANDERSEN: Well, it's going to be available ... under the guidelines of the workforce
housing ordinance for ... people qualifying for the income categories from 80 percent on
up. The final resolution, the final agreement is in a draft stage right now. So I can't
speak to exactly whether it goes all the way up to 160 or not. That will depend. But it
will be right in there. And the .. .I think the focus of the majority of the units will be
between 80 and 120 percent of median income.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank, thank you, Mr. Andersen. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good afternoon, John--3-
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MR. ANDERSEN: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --and for being here. You know, we go to the mainland
and we go visit different cities. And in the different cities, they try to revitalize the, the
city itself. And what they're doing is they converting lot of factories and you know, old
buildings and converting those buildings into apartments, as well as condominiums. In,
in regards to the eight homes that are being rehab, how that came about?
MR. ANDERSEN: The, these houses are ... approximately 25- to 30-years-old. They were on a
parcel of land. They were being rented at market rates even though they were
substandard in terms of their livability. And the project, the parcel was purchased by
KSD in order to rehabilitate it and satisfy the requirements under the workforce housing.
I think it's a wonder... a wonderful example of an in-fill project that is in walking
distance to the town, to schools, to major transportation. And it's turning what had
become a blighted area into a really beautiful project. So I think this is going to be a
great example of what can be done--both in rehabilitation and new construction
combined to meet the needs or our workforce. We would very much like to see the
tenants who were occupying those being a part of the selection process to get back in
there. We would also like to see people who work in Makawao who could take
advantage of that location... getting in there--teachers and... there are just, you know,
number of people who really need that type of housing in that type of location. So I think
this is a, a great example. I'd love to be able to use all the tools available to get those
people qualified and in. And the First-Time Home Buyers' Program that will help fund
the down payment, which is off... often a stumbling block for getting these people in is a
very important tool that we've put in the tool box as soon as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And.. .1 thank KSD for doing this. I think
it's the first project that going... going about right now that's trying to rehab and make it
more livable for people in the 80 percent and below median income. So-MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --you know-MR. ANDERSEN: We're very pleased to be a part of the work being done by KSD. And I do
believe it is the first project under the Workforce Housing Ordinance. And I think it's
extremely exciting for us to have the prospect and the target to get people in by the end of
this year. So it's time to go.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: John... Mr. Andersen? Did I hear you correctly? Is the project geared at 80
and below? Or did you say earlier 80 and--
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MR. ANDERSEN: 80 and above. 80 to 120-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
MR. ANDERSEN: --is the prime focus of this project.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Andersen, thanks for
being here. Previous to you guys taking over and rehabilitating these houses ...they were
occupied, right?
MR. ANDERSEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so-MR. ANDERSEN: Some of them were. I think the majority were ...there were some vacancies.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the people that were previously occupying these
houses, will they have first shot at going back into them once they're ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. ANDERSEN: We have asked the Housing Department to approve that very issue. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excellent.
MR. ANDERSEN: We think that makes the most sense. These people were assisted in
relocating and from the beginning we're told we would do everything possible to give
them the option to get back in and be homeowners in that revitalized neighborhood.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. Thanks very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Additional questions?
... Thank you very much, Mr. Andersen.
MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: The Chair would also like, for the record, to recognize the ... attendance of
our Council Chair and the Vice-Chair of this Committee, Mr. Hokama; as well as
Ms. Anderson. Thank, good afternoon. Members ... Mr. Andersen was the only
individual signed up to testify this afternoon. If there is anyone in the gallery wanting to
provide testimony, now would be your opportunity to please come on down to the
podium and do so.
NOTE:

Silence.
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CHAIR MATEO: ... Members, seeing no one coming forward, the Chair would like to close
public testimony at this time, ifthere's no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we're gonna go right into our agenda. The first item on today's
agenda is POL-31. POL-31, clarifying terms of appointments to Kula Agricultural Park
Committee.

ITEM NO. 31:

CLARIFYING
TERMS
OF
APPOINTMENTS
AGRICUL TURAL PARK COMMITTEE (C.C. No. 07-222)

TO

KULA

CHAIR MATEO: Members, County Communication 07-222 .. .is a proposed bill entitled: a bill
for an ordinance amending Section 22.04A.070, Maui County Code, relating to the Kula
Agricultural Park Committee.
What we have before us, Members, in
Section 22.04A.070, Maui County Code, regarding the Kula Agricultural Park
Committee, it establishes the Committee, it recognizes the specifics of the II-member
committee, and references the five-year staggered terms of its members. The proposed
amendment, Members, clarifies the terms of the appointees for the Council and the
Mayor's representatives to this Committee. You can follow along with me on the ... back
side of the letter dated July 18. There is a copy of the ... of the ordinance. And what we
are amending, Members, is in Section B. And if you can follow along with me, the
amendments would include "the representative from" ...we're adding the word "the
Council". The, we are deleting on the second line, the words "two-year". Weare adding
"concurrent with the Councilmember's term of office" .
. . . And... one, two, three--on the fourth line, we are adding ... we are adding the words
"for a term concurrent with the Mayor's term of office". Members, the, what we are
trying to do is be, be real specific in setting the terms of both the representative from the
Council and the representative from the Mayor's office in making it concurrent with their
terms of office. Members ... are there any questions that you would like ...responded to
by Corp ... Counsel?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR MATEO: . . . Seeing none, Members, if there's no questions, the Chair would
recommend that the proposed bill entitled:
a bill for an ordinance amending
Section 22.04A.070, Maui County Code, relating to the Kula Agricultural Park
Committee be passed on first reading, and that the County Communication
Number 07-222 be filed.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Hokama, second by Mr. Pontanilla. Discussion,
Members?
... Seeing none, we'll call for the vote. All those in favor, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MATEO: Opposed?
... Thank you very much, Members.

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Baisa, Johnson, Medeiros, Molina,
Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Mateo.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmember Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR MATEO: We're gonna go ahead and move on to the next item on the agenda, POL-33.
And at this point, I believe we have a change in our Corporation Counsel representatives?
Yeah? Ms. Heely, Mr. Ueoka--thank you very much for joining us.
MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Chair.
NOTE:

Pause.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter). ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..

-7-

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

August 14, 2007

CHAIR MATEO: ... Members, joining us this ... this afternoon, we're ... we're honored to have
Mayor Tavares join us this afternoon.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: '" (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you for being here. Also from the Corporat~on Counsel, Ed Kushi Jr.;
and the Director of Housing and Human Concerns ... Ms. Medeiros. Members, POL
Item 33 is our next. . .is our next item on the agenda.

ITEM NO. 33:

FIRST-TIME HOME BUYERS' PROGRAM (C.C. No. 07-234)

CHAIR MATEO: And County Communication 07-234, this is from Councilmember Molina,
relating to the matter of the First-Time Home Buyers' Program. And with that
submission was attached two correspondence. One, dated on February It\ 2007, from
the Director of Housing and Human Concerns, relating to the status of implementation of
the First-Time Home Buyers' Program.
And second correspondence, dated
July 19, 2007, also from the Director, providing recommendations to revise Chapter 3.30
of the Maui County Code, relating to the First-Time Home Buyers' Fund. Members, it is
the Chair's intent to receive, at this point, an update of this program. The Chair will
allow Mr. Molina, who submitted the communication, to provide comment first; followed
by the Director to, to comment. And I need to make it very clear that this is not a hunting
expedition, looking for fault. But rather, a fact-finding exercise to better understand
exactly how to make the program better and what the difficulties that was experienced in
not getting this program moving early on. And I do know, Members, that all of you took
the time to read the communications in your binders .
. . . And the Chair would just like to advise all of the Members that I do not intend on
entering on an extensive discussion regarding the Director's recommendations at this
time, since we do not have a bill in front of us. The bill will be submitted later by
the ...by the Department. So with that being said, the Chair will be glad to tum over for
opening questions and comments. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Chair. And thank you, first
of all, for providing an open forum for this discussion on this matter. If you'll allow me,
Chair, I'd like to give the Members and the public a background of this matter and as to
why we're here today. Back in May 2005, the Council established the First-Time Home
Buyers' Fund. The First-Time Home Buyers' Fund was established to assist needy
families with down payment and closing cost assistance in their effort to achieve their
dream of homeownership. As we all know, we are in a housing crisis here on Maui in
terms of affordability. In April 2006, the Council enacted legislation to implement the
First-Time Home Buyers' Program. Fiscal Years 2006, 2007, and 2008, the Council
appropriated 400,000 dollars each year for a total of 1.2 million for the program. In
June 2006, a contract was issued to the Maui County Employees Federal Credit Union to
process and issue loans for the program. To date, nearly 27 months after the
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establishment of the Fund and first appropriation, not one loan has been issued for this
program. 800,000 dollars in appropriations have lapsed because of this, these delays, for
whatever reasons. And I've been advised that there are over 160 families on the waiting
list for first-time homeowner assistance. These needy families continue to wait because
of these delays. We were told in February that March would be the probable starting date
for the program. Then in July, we've been told the program is yet to be implemented.
Mr. Chair, you'll recall on May 23 rd you and I met with the Housing Director and .. .if I
recall there ... there seemed to be no hitch with the program that was expressed or
concerns expressed to us from the Director, other than the fact that the possibility of
actually expanding the program might be an idea to be considered. So I'll speak for
myself--I left after that meeting with the impression that this program would be rolling
soon. But, however, it's not. For me, Mr. Chairman, it's time to find out why these
delays occurred, why the program could not be implemented while changes were made.
And... simply put, Mr. Chairman, all I want is for the program to start. And earlier we
heard from a testifier there is a housing project in Makawao and there, it would be a
perfect situation for plan, families that would need this kind of assistance. You know
we've all campaigned and publicly stated our... you know, our support for addressing
this housing problem. This is, First-Time Home Buyers' Program is just one tool in the
tool box. And simply put, we, we need to get it rolling, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. And the Chair thanks you for bringing this, this item
up, you know, up to the ... submitting it to the Chair for, so that the body could discuss it.
Because most of us were actually involved with the original creation of .. of the fund,
along with you who submitted it to us. So we all have, we all have stakes in this. And
we share the same interest in being sure that the program actually starts to move forward.
So-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, Mr. Chair, if I could add just one comment. .. one
additional comment before you continue. And, again, this is not a witch hunt that
anybody--we're all concerned, we wanna get the program rolling. And that's all this is.
This is not aimed to point fingers and blame and what not, but just to get some answers
and see what all of us--the Administration and the Council--can do to get this program
rolling.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. At, at this time, before asking the Director to provide comment,
Mayor Tavares is, has joined us this afternoon, and the Chair would allow her the
opportunity--ifyou're ...
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: ... you warma provide comment at this point, Mayor Tavares.
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MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Chair Mateo for allowing me to, to come down to this
meeting ... (cough) . .. I felt that it was very important because we all are trying to work
toward the same goal . . . (cough). . . Excuse me, I'm just getting over a cold
.. . (laughter) . .. And that goal is to, is to get the tools . .. so that people can use them to
get into housing. We're all ... all on the same page as far as that's concerned. I sat on
this Council when this was reviewed. And I'm glad that Mr. Molina brought out
facts
regarding
when
these
bills
were
actually
the ...the
enacted--May 2005 ... April 2006. This is now 2007. And I, and I have to, you know,
beg your indulgence a little bit. Ms. Medeiros came on to the, to our staff in February of
2007. She's barely had seven, six months to get up and running. With the staffing that
we have in the Human Concerns that deal with these issues, we would have to have a
choice of do we not process 1,200 rental Section 8 agreements in order to work on this?
Do we implement this as it is and the ultimate ...
. . . loser is going to be the very people who need the help. I don't believe it was
anyone's intention at the time this bill was written that a person applying for a loan up to
15,000 dollars would have a balloon payment at the end of 15 years or whatever the term
was, of that 15,000 dollars. And on a demand, a 30-day demand, they would have to pay
that amount. This was one of the big hitches in, in the bill as it's written. And I think it's
an outstanding one in that who are we going to suffer or, or make suffer. I. .. am just as
anxious as the next person to get this bill up and running. And I believe that we can get it
up and running, as Ms. Medeiros has said. And she can go into the details if you'd like,
but I heard you say you didn't want to discuss that in today's meeting... preferably when
the bill is all together ...
CHAIR MATEO: Yes.
MAYOR TAVARES: ... in the Ramsayered form.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay. That, that would make more sense. But I. . .I think that, you
know, rather... rather than us rush into it, and I know that in her letter she had said she
had not talked with me yet about this ... and at the time that she wrote the letter, we
hadn't talked. But we did talk soon after that. And she pointed out to me some of
the ...the shortfalls in the bill and what the impact would be. And that's what I was
concerned about--the impact to the very people we are trying to help. There is no
provision for early or regular payment. .. of this loan. So even if a person wanted to pay
us 1,000 dollars a month to repay the loan, they couldn't. The other thing is who is going
to pay for the originating fee and the servicing fee. I think that's the right term--servicing
fee. The person applying for the loan would have to pay this? This fund does not allow
for any so-called administration costs. So that needs to be discussed and, and fixed
somehow. If it is the intent that the loan... the person applying for the loan, the borrower
is to front these costs or absorb these costs, then let us make it clear to everyone that
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that's what the intention is. So I just would like to have ... your Committee's indulgence,
Mr. Mateo, and also allow us some time to work with Mr. Molina on some of these finer
points that were brought up and let's make the bill right rather than rush into it. You
know, Ms. Medeiros will talk about it a little bit later as far as the timing goes, but I just
wanted to come down here to assure you that we're not sitting on anything. We want this
to work. We want affordable housing. We didn't spend years talking about the
workforce housing bill only to have it stymied by something like this. There, there is an
end in sight. And I think by working on it together, we can get there. And I just came
down here to assure you that I feel it's important for my... for my being here to talk
about this and to assure you that we will work extremely hard and we'll try to get it ahead
of schedule if we can. But we need to do it right because I'm afraid of those, what we
call unintended consequences if we rush through something at this point. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Madam Mayor, in your discussion .. .in your discussion with the
Department, are you aware of... of a timetable that an amended bill will be submitted to
this body?
MAYOR TAVARES: I believe she wrote in her response to Mr. Molina, I believe it was ...that
it was the end of September.
CHAIR MATEO: When she'd... okay, let me see where it was.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yeah, our goal is the end of September.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: September.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, the July 19th communication, was that the one?
CHAIR MATEO: Oh, okay. Thank you very much. I, I found it-MAYOR TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: --yeah, on Page 3 of the communication to Mr. Molina, Number 3... on, on
September 30.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MATEO: So that is when you plan on getting it to the body?
MAYOR TAVARES: Well, we're trying to accelerate it. And Ms. Medeiros and I both have
committed to .. .if it means that we have to work on weekends or whatever, we'll do it.
Because this needs to be done. And it is, like I said, it is important and there are people
depending on us to get something like this going so that they can avail themselves of the
opportunity. At the same time, we don't wanna stick it to them with some ofthose--you
- 11 -

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

August 14, 2007

know, you've seen those commercials on TV about the monkey on the lady's back, right,
because she didn't use a certain credit card. But anyway, we don't want that to happen to
our very...the very people we're trying to help. So I think that we take a little more
time--and we're talking what, six weeks ... maybe sooner that we can get this out,
hammered out so that you folks can discuss it thoroughly and we can cover all the bases.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Yeah, and, and at that time, when the bill is actually submitted to us,
just based on some of the Director's recommendations, there's, there's a lot of room for
debate on some of these items.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MATEO: And, and I think you know when it is submitted, I do not expect it will
be ... you know, a quick thing to go through because there is some items being
recommended that we need to have explained more thoroughly to us. The difference
between Council intent and the Director's intent are two very different things. And this
is what the Department has failed to share with us.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MATEO: We have not had the open communication. And the Chair has gotten to a
point where everything is gonna be in black and white.
MAYOR TAVARES: And I believe rightfully so ...
CHAIR MATEO: So-MAYOR TAVARES: ... Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: --you know, so thank you so much, Madam Mayor. I, I. .. you know, we do
not question your interest because you have been a driving force in helping to get us to
this point with...with these items. So we thank you and at this point, Madam Mayor,
we're ready to hear from the Director.
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chairman. First of all, the, in the letter that was written on
February 13 th . And...that was, of course, 13 days into my, start of my, my job. So this,
this letter was actually drafted by my Housing Administrator. And in his indication, he
had indicated to me that the program would be operational by the middle of March. And
I asked him the question at that time--are you sure ... and he said yes. And I said, okay,
you know, you're, you're putting my name on this thing. Urn ... following that, you
know, we asked our staff to, to go ahead and implement. And it was my staffwho came
back to us, to me, said, saying that there was problems. Our staff did meet with the
Credit Union. There was discussions between the Credit Union and our Housing staff,
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and there were concerns with the implementation discussed at that point in time. We
later had a, another meeting with the Credit Union, and... and I still had questions, and
then, and I'll sort of illiterate some of these questions that I had. In the original request
for proposal. .. the request asked for a, a proposal for administration of the program.
· .. There were ... two applicants that. .. turned in proposals. One applicant, Applicant A,
indicated that they would do ... only loan origination at 500 dollars per loan. Applicant B
said we will do total administration of the program--meaning not only will we do loan
origination, but we will do loan servicing at a cost of approximately 2,000 dollars per
loan, flat rate, so we will service this from the point we, we do it to the ... to the end point
as a flat rate. For whatever reason--and this was done ... sometime last year before I
came on board ... a contract was given to Applicant A based solely on a dollar amount
and not what was proposed.
· .. A contract was written in the amount of 400,000 dollars to Applicant A. However,
we had another problem. The ordinance does not provide for the payment. .. to the
contractor for originating the loans. So the question was how are we going to resolve
this. We, we ...we set up a 400,000 dollar contract which was the Fund itself to an
entity who said that they were only going to originate the loan. And the question was
how do we now pay for their services. And that was one of the other stumbling blocks
that we ...we ran into in implementing. So the question is how do we resolve this. The
only way to resolve this is to totally clarify what it is that we're asking for. Two major
components of the program is loan origination and loan servicing. And that is what we
are attempting to clarify in our revised documents. I believe that once we can clarify this,
then when we put out an RFP we can be explicitly clear as to what service we're asking
for. Now our intent at this point in time is to put out an RFP for loan origination.
Because that's the key point. You know, we wanna be able to get these loans out--Ioan
origination. Loan servicing may need to be done by the County for, hopefUlly, a very
short period oftime because we don't have the staffing to be monitoring ... (end ojtape,
start lE) . .. but we will have to certainly come back and do an RFP for loan servicing for
whatever period of time is necessary.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay-MS. MEDEIROS: The question still remains, however, where are we gonna get those monies
from. Will it come out of the Fund, and if so, then a revision needs to be made to allow
for that. Or is the money gonna come out of some other pot? So that's another area of
clarification that is needed.
· .. And I guess ... unless you want me to .. .I don't think you want me to explain some of
the other ...
CHAIR MATEO: Well, let me-MS. MEDEIROS: ... concerns we had-- 13 -

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 14, 2007

CHAIR MATEO: Let me just follow-up with what. .. with what you said real. .. real briefly and
ask you the question, then. The prior Director is the ...responsible for initiating a
contract between the County and the Credit Union?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: And in this contract, it was reviewed by Corporation Counsel?
MS. MEDEIROS: 1. . .1 believe so.
CHAIR MATEO: And it was not caught at that point that there were, there were still particulars
involved that was not cleared-MS. MEDEIROS: I, 1-CHAIR MATEO: --in terms ofthe fee?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yeah, I, I'm going to assume not. Again, I, I wasn't there, so I can't answer
for the previous Administration, although it appears from what my staff.. .indicated to
me--that everything was being rushed, everything was being pushed and said just get it
done, just do it. And I think as a result of this, that some of the very important things
may have been overlooked.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So the contract was ... was signed off on and 400,000 dollars was
assigned to go to the Credit Union so they can implement the loan program. Apparently,
the monies were never released to the Credit Union, so what happened to that 400,000
dollars at this point?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, I believe that that 400,000 dollars--I'm going to assume which was part
ofthe Fiscal '07 Budget--has lapsed.
CHAIR MATEO: It's a revolving fund. It does not lapse.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh. Yeah .
. . . It's revolving.
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. Then... but the contract-MAYOR TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
MS. MEDEIROS: --ended, the contract expired as of June 30th .
CHAIR MATEO: The contract with the Credit Union expired.
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MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: But the, the ...how do we, do you have an idea of what we need to do
to ...what we need to initiate to ...
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, again-CHAIR MATEO: ... get the fund-MS. MEDEIROS: --we would have to go back out and RFP for the service.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Okay.
MS. MEDEIROS: But. .. and, and I, I think... that's one of the areas that, that. .. clarification is,
is .. .is important. Is, you know, you have to pay for the service. If you're gonna
contract this out, you have to pay for the service. So you have the Fund. The Fund is
what's gonna give you the down payment assistance. But if you're gonna contract out
the service, you have to pay for the service. The question is where those monies are
gonna come from.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And the question is, right now, because none of the monies were
actually spent, how do we get our money back. So ...we, we'll just need to wrestle with
that. Members, the floor is open for questions. We're gonna start with Mr.. .. Pontanilla,
followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Simple question. I understand that
Lokahi Pacific has been doing the Home Program for Maui County. What's the
difference between the Home Program, which the limitation is 15,000 dollars per
applicant, with this First-Time Home Buyers' Program? And what I'm looking at is how
do we administer, or how do the Home Program being administered by Lokahi and... you
know now we're at a point where, how we gonna administer this 400,000 dollars that we
speak of. In my mind, it's almost like the same program... because of the ... the ... the
15,000 dollars for both Home Program, as well as the First-Time Home Buyers' Program.
MAYOR TAVARES: .. . (inaudible} ...
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. To, to my understanding... Lokahi Pacific was doing a down payment
assistance program for several years for the County. In fact, very ironically, I wrote the
original specs for that program. Urn ... at, and it was being funded through the Home
Investment Partnerships monies, which is this, uh ... the Federal funds. I don't know
why, but for, for whatever reason the program was pulled and it was stopped. And... you
know, I, I again I don't know exactly what happened with that. It just, for whatever
reason, stopped. It was a very successful program. And Lokahi was administering the
program. They were doing everything from soup to nuts. Again, it probably would have
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been a great thing to have just tagged along with the program they were doing and just
simply using this kind of funding and, and .. .integrate it into what they were doing. You
probably would have just had this thing continuing on. But for whatever reason, you
know ... this was created. And so now we're having to go back and, you know, redo the
program guidelines to make sure that it fits with the ordinance that was, that was passed.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So .. .if we're gonna go out for another RFP, can a
nonprofit organization like Lokahi Pacific ...who is .. . (laughter) . .. to me really familiar
with this kind program be eligible to .. .I guess compete for that RFP?
MS. MEDEIROS:
Oh, sure.
Any, anyone could, any nonprofit or any entity
could... um ... certainly do that. I think what's gonna be important for us in doing the
RFP is to be explicitly clear with what it is that we're asking for. I think in the first RFP
that was put out, the responses that we got back was apples and oranges, and it was unfair
to both entities in terms of what they, what they proposed, what was reviewed and... you
know, having the situation as it is now.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that information in regards to
Lokahi Pacific. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Hokama, followed by Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Chairman, thank you.
· .. Mayor, good afternoon.
MAYOR TAVARES: Good afternoon.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Director Medeiros ... you know, if I can recall correctly, in
our... committee deliberations to get this program .. .initiated.. .1, I can recall that we had
conversations about how ...how much money, how we're gonna provide for the ...
· . . loans or funds to get to the specific applicants that qualify. And as I recall,
Mr. Chairman, I don't remember once the Department. .. providing a comment to the
Committee or to the full Council that it was not in their ability to perform. If I remember
correctly when we asked the then Director... that was participating in the meetings with
us ...the answer was pretty much either "no comment" or "we don't have one problem".
I have taken that. .. to, to be that the Department would be the ones to perform.
· .. Now in this letter that we have from the Director, this Director, Medeiros ... sharing
comments about, after discussions with her--and I'm referring to the February 13 th letter,
Mr. Chairman and Members. In the first paragraph, it says, you know, after talking to
Housing Division .. .it was decided that this program would be better handled by a private
financial institution.
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· .. So if that was the case internally, I would say Administration or the Department
made a decision that they chose not to perform.
· .. So my question would be then...why wasn't the senior management made aware so
that we could be informed that we had issues in implementing the program? Because
already... for this term, you know, the Mayor had basically six weeks--and I know she
was working on the budget--but it was already decided internally within the Department
that this wasn't gonna move forward, Chairman. So for me the issue is communication.
Because up to that point, this .. .in this letter, I would say up 'til December of last
year ...
· .. wasn't the assumption or the internal decision for the Department to still perform? So
something happened from the time we passed this authorization to this February 13 th
letter, Chairman--from "we can" to "we cannot". And I think that's where we need to
know--is why weren't we informed. Because if it was done at the time of the initial
legislation, I would think Members would have done the responsible thing and retake a
look at how we would try and implement the program--whether it be additional monies to
take care administrative cost or to build in that only an X percentage, whether it be
3 percent, what have you, of that 400,000 will be for administrative purposes. Or we
would have at least discussed it and come up some type of mitigation options for the
Administration to consider.
· .. But I still have yet to hear why through administrative rules the Department cannot
perform.
· .. Because we didn't hear it during Budget--we need more positions.
· .. We didn't hear it Budget that we needed administrative fees.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... So, Chairman, I am posing questions. And I am hopeful that we
can get some good responses so that we can make the appropriate adjustments in a timely
manner so we can ...
· .. again, I will say in agreement with the Mayor--we want this out in the community.
· .. I'm done, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Points well taken, Member Hokama. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And first of all, I
appreciate the concerns that we've been made aware of by the Director. I mentioned
earlier that we met with the Director on May 23 rd , and to my knowledge--and I don't
know about you, Mr. Chairman--these concerns that have been told to us today right here
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and now was not made clear to us. And I would have appreciated a response from the
Director--whether it be in writing or verbal. I don't know if you got a response from the
Director with regards to these concerns that have been presented to us here today. If we
had heard about these concerns ... a lot sooner, maybe we wouldn't have to be spending
your valuable Committee time on this matter, Mr. Chairman. So I just wanna preface my
questions with those, with these statements. Okay? My question to the Director... first.
· . . Okay, in your letter, you stated that an administrative loan origination
serving... servicing fee be made available to the service provider. Now, there's already
an administrative fee built into the ordinance. And it seemed that the Credit Union didn't
have an issue with this. So why is the administration fee in the ordinance, I guess,
inadequate or a cause for concern? And also, if I could add .. .if we're also looking at
putting in additional fees, wouldn't that be, I guess, putting an additional burden on the
needy families who need this? I mean, it's like we're adding another fee which would be
making it more difficult for them.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms .... Ms. Medeiros?
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. I'm just trying to get clarification. First of all, you're talking about
the administrative cost, which is .. .in that last section. It says ...which, again is
ordinance that you provided that states that the borrow, the borrower can be assessed up
to 450 dollars a year in administrative costs. Okay? Again, in my looking at that,
administrative cost is a cost of loan servicing. That's your administrative cost. And,
again, it's up to 450. Doesn't have to be 450. Okay? It can be identified as what is our
cost to do this. But it was set up in the ordinance as maximum of 450. There's
nowhere ... again, in here that tells us how do we pay the contractor if we're going, if
we're gonna provide for loan origination, a fee for loan origination. Is the County gonna
pay for that? Because if the County's not, ifthere's no provision for the County to pay
for that as part of the contract, then it can only come out of the borrower.
· .. There's, there's no other place for it to come from.
· . . So again this, this is one of those areas that we needed clarification. If it was the
intent that this "up to 450 for administrative cost" to also be included for loan origination,
it's not clear.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... Well-MS. MEDEIROS: And it's ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --it's not clear to me either .. .(laughter) . .. right now. But
anyway, I, I appreciate your response to that. Urn ... and, Mr. Chair, if I could add, you
know this body as it relates to other legislation, we, we passed legislation before and
we've dealt with the bumps along the way. So it wouldn't be the first time that this body
passed something and then dealt with the concerns at a later point. So I, I just wanted
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to ... say that as well. So I, I understand you know the concerns from the Director as to
why we need to hold this up. So ... but at the same time, keep in mind people have been
waiting a long time. And, and I don't put all this on, on the shoulders of our current
Director. As we all know, this matter was enacted in 2005. So there is some
responsibility placed on the pre, prior Administration as well. So .. .I just wanted to
make that statement, Mr. Chairman. Urn ... I've got more questions, but I'll go ahead and
yield the floor to other the Members ifthey have questions.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Baisa, followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. In the spirit of wanting to move things along,
which is where I think we're all going, we'd like to get something set up and get the
money out where we can do the good--which was the intent of the people that allocated
it. Um .. .I just wanna ask. .. we seem to have a very close partnership and have funded
Na Hale 0 Maui to help us with this affordable housing...requirement in the
workforce...workforce housing bill and we're funding them and they seem to be moving
along like house on fire and getting things done. And I know they are partners in this
development that we were talking about earlier...that I had the opportunity to visit the
other day. And it's very impressive. Sure makes you feel good when you walk in a
pretty home like that and know that some low-income family soon will be getting a key.
Makes you feel good. But, we need to move this thing. And I was wondering 'cause I
don't even know if they would be interested, but would they be an appropriate body to
handle this for us?
... They certainly would get it going.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Medeiros?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, no offense to Na Hale 0 Maui, I don't know of, what their capabilities
are with respect to this. Although, I can tell you that I've already been working with
Lokahi Pacific who has experience, specifically, with this kind of program. And they are
assisting us .. .in getting the revisions that we are trying to get done so that we can move
ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's good. Really, it's just an idea. I'm trying to find a way to
get it out there as quick as possible.
MS. MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, because we have a cumulative amount of money,
because this is a revolving ... (laughter) . .. fund, do we know how much money is
currently available?
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MS. MEDEIROS: Well, my understanding is that if this has been funded for three years at
400,000 per year. So it should be 1.2 million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so and if we, Mr. Chair, could verify that when, with
Finance? Because you know, to me I think it's really important that we know, yes, that's
what we have to deal with. Then, the other question would be in terms of the--and this
may be for Mr. Kushi. In terms of the execution of any contract. . .I realize we have all
these provisions that allow for people to escape from contracts, but there's no legal
obligation, then, Mr. Kushi, if we entered into a contractual agreement and it was just
never.. .I guess executed or acted upon? Is there any liability or are there any lingering
issues if any services were provided by the entity we entered into the contract with?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, Member Johnson, I'm not familiar ... familiar with this certain contract.
Another Deputy in our office signed off on it. But my understanding is that. . .I did look
at it. And it was almost like a fee-for-services type of situation. And if the facts are
correct that there were no services, there were no fees due, and there was a time
for ...time of performance built into that, which apparently has lapsed, the contract is
lapsed. So unless ... the Credit Union...which most of us are members, comes back
and... gives us a bill for, you know, time wasted-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: --basically in bidding and, and dealing with, dealing with the County... the matter
is done.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I, I just wanted to make sure of that. Because you
know many times when we enter into contracts, we do it with all good faith and intent to
move forward with issues that sometimes for one reason or another we can't do it. My
final question would be in regard to the, I guess the ... doing a request for proposal or you
know all the issues that are contained within the conversation today or the back and
forth .. .if we're looking at a time-line for, let's say September, whatever...would it be
something that the Administration is now going to work with the legislative body of the
Council and Mr. Molina in coming together to resolve these issues very quickly and then
go out with the next RFP--is that sort ofthe scenario?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, again, you know, our intent is--and we're trying to work on everything
concurrently in revising the program guidelines to make sure that, again, we're trying to
be explicitly clear in exactly what it is that we're trying to do so that there's no mistake or
misunderstanding. We, again, do have some recommendations in, in terms of
amendments. And we are in the process of trying to prepare those. Again, you know,
we sought advice on should we just give you the list of what we think should be done
and, you know, have the Legislative branch develop the amendments; or is better for us
to develop it and present it. And we were told the fastest way would be for us to develop
it and present it. So we're trying to ... do our best efforts at doing that so that we can give
you something to actually look at and then we work on it from that point on.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate that. I look at this as a pilot project. So
unfortunately what happens with pilot projects, you learn about all these things once you
get immersed in the middle of the process.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So I'm perfectly agreeable, you know, and Mr. Chair, I'm
sure we all wanna see this move so anything that our body can do to help support that or
whether it's a special meeting or... doing whatever, I, I just really wanna see this move.
But I also consider this a pilot project which I think, for me anyway, it's not gonna have
everything in place so I'm not gonna .. . {laughter} . .. I'm not gonna hold my breath until
all these things, every single question is answered because there's some things that you're
just gonna find out about it once you're in the administrative process. So I'm not as
concerned about those things as I am just allowing your Department or whatever outside
entity to move forward in getting the money in the hands of the people that most need it.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank-MS. MEDEIROS: If-CHAIR MATEO: --you.
MS. MEDEIROS: If! may add, Chairman?
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MS. MEDEIROS: Just another piece of information... on this is ...what the Council may not be
aware of is there already has been a down payment assistance program through the
County that has been operating for the last three to four years. And it is, again, through,
funded through the Home Investment Partnerships Program. It is called the American
Dream Down Payment Initiative, the ADDI Program. That provides a 50, up to 15,000
dollar grant to families who are 80 percent and below median income. And I can tell you
just very, if I can, indulge me with a very short story, is ...when we were talking about
this program and working with the ... the Credit Union and realized that we get, got to
situation that we could not move further, I had a call, phone call from a lady. And she
spent five minutes chewing off my right ear and ... about our decisions and how we're
hurting them. And I kept telling her, I says I don't understand ...what you're talking
about because ...the First-Time Home Buyers' Program was never officially
implemented. There was never an official notice saying this program has started. So
how is it that you are ... biting my ear off on a program that we have not officially started.
And she went on again and chewed off my left ear for about another minute. And I said,
did you ever consider applying for the ADDI Program 'cause it sounds to me like you
might actually qualify for that. And she stopped and she said that's what I'm talking
about. And I said, well, then we're talking about apples and grapes because the ADDI
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Program is operational, it has never stopped operating. And ...we had our staff, we
contacted our staff...now again, this individual had applied with the same credit union,
and the credit union had told her to wait. And I asked her why would you want to get a
15,000 dollar deferred loan when you could get a 15,000 grant that you wouldn't have to
repay under the ADDI Program. And she said that's the one I want. And we were able,
and I was ... announce to you that after three to four years, the County has finally done its
very first ADDI Program grant. So again you know, these are programs that have been
on board, have been on-line for whatever reason... and this list of 160 families on a
waitlist which I am not aware of, and we would love to get that list of people because
there may be families on that list who may meet the requirements of the ADDI Program.
And we would certainly love to help them out through the ADDI Program with a 15,000
dollar or up to 15,000 dollar grant.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Medeiros. The, the Home and the ADDI Program,
those are Federal monies?
MS. MEDEIROS: Those are Federal momes, agam through the, our Home Investment
Partnerships Program.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Yeah, they're, they're Federal monies.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MATEO: And the intent of this was to have our County help, provide the additional
help to those that may not qualify--may not qualify.
MS. MEDEIROS: Right. No, and I understand-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah?
MS. MEDEIROS: I understand that. I just wanted to make sure that everybody knew that there
was already this other program. And if there are families that were on a waitlist that
might qualify for this, we may be able to, to continue to help them.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Thank you. Uh, so Ms. Johnson, I'm sorry, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, no, that was just my question and you asked it. Because
I wanted to make sure what the source of the funding was for that particular program and
you, you ... (laughter) . .. anticipated my question. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. And, and just to respond to your question regarding the amount
of money that's currently in the Fund-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR MATEO: The Fiscal Year 2008 Budget ordinance shows 800,000 in there now. But
there is still the question of that initial 400,000 dollars that was actually encumbered for
the Credit Union to initiate they, their program that was never spent. So we still have
the ... question ofthat additional 400,000 dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate that. And at the time, if we can get that
information? Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. I just wanted to add some further
clarification to differentiate between the Federal Home Program and the First-Time
Home Buyers' Program. If you recall and, and those of the Members who served on the
prior terms, the First-Time Home Buyers' Program, the target group was the gap group,
the 80 to 120. If you recall, Mr. Chairman, it was the policemen, the firemen, the
teachers, those who make too much to qualify-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --for the Federal program. So that was where a lot of the
community outcry was coming from. So that was sort of the impetus to create this Fund
to address the needs of that group. So I just wanted to add further clarification for
the ... to that. . .in, to ...provide that input to the Director, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Members, additional questions for the Director?
· .. Hearing none-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair?
CHAIR MATEO: I'm sorry. Go ahead, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Uh ...
· .. Ms. Medeiros, how much, what is the total funding annually for the ADDI Program?
How much do you have to give out?
MS. MEDEIROS: Unfortunately, that has been a declining amount. I believe right now there's
about 60,000 in the account. I believe we're receiving about another 8,000 ...
· .. am I close?
MR. OSHIRO, FROM THE AUDIENCE: 11,000.

- 23 -

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 14,2007

MS. MEDEIROS: 11,000. Again, the good and the bad about the ADDI Program is something
that started off as a Federal initiative. And like all Federal initiatives, once they get, they
get it going they start giving you less money. So it's, it's gonna be declining. But it
is ... operational.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Washington, D.C.

. . . Until, of course, we change administrations

In

· .. On the, on the First-Time Home Buyer...Program, what do you anticipate the cost
per loan to be?
MS. MEDEIROS: ... Again, that, that. .. that. .. could change, it depends on the, on... the
entity. That, I mean, if you go out for an RFP and you, and you say provide me a
proposal for origination of a loan, different entities could have different cost structures.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know, but you should have some kind of a generalized
idea. Don't you? I mean, on a 15,000 dollar loan.. .it doesn't seem like it's a real
complicated loan.
· .. And you know I just have to ask the, the 450 ...minimum... um ...
· . . the borrower shall pay an annual loan administration fee of up to 450 dollars as
determined by the Director to cover administration costs of the Department or agency
administering the loan. So it seems like there's already a trigger there to pay the
administrative cost, whether or not it is done by government or an agency that takes it
over. And you know .. .450 dollars annually . .. that, that's exorbitant if you're only
loaning them 15,000. So .. .I'm just wondering you know when you did the first RFP,
did they give you any indication of what they would charge to process the loan?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, again ... the, the contract. .. well, the award that was given to the Credit
Union, the Credit Union had indicated a rate of 500 dollars per loan for loan origination.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... For loan origination?
NOTE:

Silence.

MS. MEDEIROS: ... Okay? That's only loan origination. Now, if-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that's a one-time fee?
MS. MEDEIROS: That was a one-time fee.
NOTE:

Silence.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
annually.

. . . Well, that seems reasonable.

But certainly not

MS. MEDEIROS: No. Again...remember this ... the, there's, there's two components to this
loan. Loan origination is everything from application to the time the loan is closed. And
loan servicing is from that point until the time the loan is paid off.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Yeah, and we don't have anything in here about. . .loan
servIcmg.
MS. MEDEIROS: ... And that's where .. .I, again, my understanding is the, the discussion
about the "up to 450 annually for loan administration" is actually the loan servicing
portion.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... You know, when you come back to us, I think it would
be very helpful, Mr. Chairman, if we could see, you know, some kind of, and even if
that's a matter of--well, you gave us one example ... 500 dollars at, as the loan origination
fee .. .(end of tape, start 2A) . .. But I think it'll be helpful if we knew ...what the fees
were gonna be over the life of the loan. The loan is supposed to be for 15 years ...
. . . for 15,000 dollars. So it seems like it'd be a pretty easy thing to calculate out.
Although... you know, I'll defer that to you because I, I do note that in your letter you
have made mention... of ...
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... ofthe interest, too, being a bit. .. out ofline.
MS. MEDEIROS: Ifpermitted, I can .. .I can give you a really quick scenario on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.
MS. MEDEIROS: Urn ... and, and this is another area that we, we have some concerns about.
Assuming we have a family who receives a maximum 15,000 dollar down payment
assistance ... and, and the way it's set up right now is that there's no payments until the
15 th year. So the 15 th year comes and the County sends them the demand letter, says you
must pay us within 30 days. And they don't pay us within 30 days. According to the
ordinance, that loan is now in default and subj ect to double the prime rate. The prime
rate that was on June 29 th was 8.25 percent. Double the prime rate would be
16.5 percent. The HRS, 478, maximum is 12 percent. So we took the 12 percent
maximum on a simple interest--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ms. Medeiros, could you explain what HRS 478-MS. MEDEIROS: Hawaii Revised Statute 470 .. .478, and that is referenced in the ordinance
itself. It talks about the usury rates and the maximum interest rates that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. MEDEIROS: --can be charged. So ... based on, again 12 percent. And the ... according to
the ordinance, it would be back to the loan... closing date, when the loan was originated.
So your interest rates would go back to the time the loan was originated and calculate it
up to the-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: 15 years.
MS. MEDEIROS: --point of default and continue on until the loan is paid. So if we assume that,
again, 12 percent is our maximum, 15 years at 15,000 dollars, it'll add another 27,000
dollars to the loan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's a big help, isn't it? .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. MEDEIROS: So ... so ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter). ..
MS. MEDEIROS: ... in.. .in the unfortunate situation that the family was not able to pay upon
demand, they would now .. .in addition to the 15,000 owe us 27,000 and the clock would
continue to tick until the loan was repaid.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that is certainly not workable, and I appreciate your
looking .. .(laughter) . .. into this. And, and also the ... (cleared throat) . .. excuse me.
The ... (cleared throat) . .. the analysis that you did here on these various sections, you're
presenting, you, you're stating what the problem is and then you're presenting various
solutions--could be this or you could do that. And I appreciate that. And I think the other
Members would, too, in...when you come back to us if you could give us, maybe, you're
presenting different options here in your... amendments, if you could give us ... both
options, if that's possible? Because I don't think the Chair's willing to go into a deep
discussion on this today for us to make a policy decision one way or the other. But in as,
as we're learning right now, until you get in actual, practical implementation, you don't,
sometimes, see these various options or problems. So that would be helpful. And then,
just one other thing, Mr. Chairman, if I could mention? You know, we had some
testifiers inform us the other day that they are aware of people who have been applying
for affordable housing and that ...
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· .. the various sellers are directing them to certain mortgage companies that they are, I
guess, tied to for whatever reason, and that what is happening is that if they don't get an
answer within 90 days .. .that the housing in question, if it's not sold within 90 days, then
the seller has the option to sell it to a higher, at a higher price to another, a
higher.. .income-level person... and basically shutting out the lower-income person just
because they didn't get an answer on their loan within 90 days. And so I, I'd like to see
us tie up that loophole somehow. And in, in formulating your amendments to this, I
would hope that you would take that into consideration because what good is it gonna do
for us to give a 15,000 dollar down payment to somebody while they are still waiting,
maybe, for an off-shore mortgage company to give them an answer within the 90-day
time frame. And then if they don't get it, they don't qualify for the higher level. And so
they're out entirely. And we and whoever you find to do this is out all that time and
effort, too. So it seems like there should be some kind of failsafe mechanism that would
can put into the process to make sure that does not happen.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR MATEO: ... Thank you-MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: --very much, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, additional, additional questions? May, maybe just. .. a comment
for the Department because .. .I, I think as pointed to, pointed out to us by the Director in
a, in an earlier meeting...we've addressed, we've addressed accessibility for Maui
island. We have not addressed accessibility in being able to have these institutions on
both Lanai and Molokai. So as we take a look at that selection of a financial institution,
we've gotta take a look at having that accessibility for all three of our... of our islands.
Mr....Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would just ask that. . .if.. .if you would consider,
one ...maybe having a brief discussion with Ms. Ridao. You know, my, and I, you know,
I believe Mr. Molina stirred my memory when he mentioned that we were trying to
address the gap group.
· .. I believe one of the discussions we had regarding the issue of the ...non-interest loan
and how certain things would be approached was that I believe, she brought up that there
are those that would quickly refinance ...
· .. the loan, the County loan with their existing loan and re, and do a refinancing to take
care of all of that under one ... payment program. And I, I think that might be still
another consideration we should review once more. 'Cause a lot of things was done with
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consultation from Ms. Ridao coming from a...nonprofit that actually did this type of
programs, from our... Housing and Human Concerns Department through its Director.
And so it's not that we worked in a void not knowing some of the potential situations that
could occur, Chairman. So I would, I will ask you to consider that. And talking out loud
to the Mayor in, in a un ... unofficial way--maybe we need to view our financial
institutions that wanna do business with this County... that these are some of the type of
services the County would like to provide in return of consideration of our ...
. . . short-term cash investments.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... You know, we've got, maybe, 300 million dollars in round
numbers of cash in short-term investments, six months more, plus or minus. And maybe
if we need to view of approaching our institutions in another way so we still can have
one ... a fair return to the County, but we can expose or, or provide different types of
community benefit through this relationships. And I would just, again, you know, have
our Mayor Tavares and Mr. Young from Finance ...view this as possible considerations
that we could explore.
CHAIR MATEO: ... Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. Question for the Director with
regards to the Federal Home Program. What are the origination fees for the Federal
Home Program.. .if you know off-hand? Because I'm trying to make a comparison
between the fees that are with the Federal program versus the First-Time Home Buyers'.
MS. MEDEIROS: You're talking about the ADDI Program?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. MEDEIROS: ... I have to ask my expert who's on, in the .. .in the field there.
MR. OSHIRO, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Five hundred.
MS. MEDEIROS: Five hundred. Again, it's the same entity that's doing that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Same entity. So ... and I know there's an issue of
these, you know, proposed fees that you might be considering in addition. And I, I, again
my, my... caution or concern is that we don't be too excessive with fees for the folks that
we're trying to help. So I think we should really approach that with caution.
So ... anyway... okay, that's all for now, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, additional questions?
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... Mayor Tavares?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, could I have short recess to confer with you?
CHAIR MATEO: Sure. Members, we're gonna take a five-minute recess at this point. We'll
reconvene at. . .2:50. We are in recess ... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

2:44 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:53 p.m.

CHAIR MATEO: ... (gavel). .. Policy Committee meeting for August 14,2007 will reconvene.
Members, thank you very much for that, that little break. Members, if there are no
additional questions for the Department, the Chair will recommend a deferral of this item
ifthere's no objections.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no objections to deferral.
And before we conclude this matter, I wanna personally thank Mayor Tavares for getting
involved with this matter. I did send a... a July 20th correspondence to our Council Chair
and also CC'd the letter to the Mayor and sent a copy to Mayor Tavares. And I wanna
thank her for her involvement with this. And, again, 1. .. gonna keep my fingers crossed
and be very optimistic we can move on this, address the potential snags to the bill
because the need is there. We've got folks standing in line. And I look forward to the
proposed amended bill that will come to us from the Department, and so we can get
cracking on this. Mr. Chairman, there's monies out there that the public would like to
use and, you know, fulfill that dream of homeownership. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. The Chair shares your anticipation for us to start the,
the movement forward. Thank you very much. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, Ijust would like to make one other closing comment
for people who are interested and have been listening. Uh ...
. . . you know, I know, I know that there was a comment made that this was intended for
the gap group, but in actuality the language says that anybody having a household income
of 140 percent or less of the County median income. So if you, if you run out of fund,
funds in the ADDI Program, which is for 80 percent and below, that's not to say that we
couldn't also use the money in this fund for people 80 percent and below. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Any additional comments, Members, before we move
on to the next item?
... Thank you very much. Mayor Tavares, thank you.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Ms. Medeiros, thank you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MV)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR MATEO: Mayor, you're gonna be staying and joining us for the rest of the afternoon?
We'd love to have your company-ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
MAYOR TAVARES: ... (laughter) . .. Ithink they can handle it. . . (laughter) . ..
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, we're gonna move on POL-8(2), amendments to the
residential workforce housing policy.
ITEM NO. 8(2): AMENDMENTS TO THE RESIDENTIAL WORKFORCE HOUSING
POLICY (VARIOUS) (C.C. No. 07-38)

CHAIR MATEO: And on our agendas, Members, referencing the bill for, the pro, the draft bill
entitled: a bill for an ordinance to reduce the County fees required for residential
workforce housing units. Members, the purpose of the bill is to amend various sections
of the Maui County Code to decrease the County fees required to build residential
housing units. It is the Chair's intent this afternoon to walk through the proposed
ordinance, all eight pages. And I'm hopeful that we will be able to get consensus on
these items as we attempt to move forward. The Chair will ... for clarification purposes,
like to have the Members know that the items for consideration in the bill this afternoon,
these are items that are specific fees that would be exempt in a 20lH process. And in
addition, the old 2.86, Affordable Housing Code, also allowed for the 50 percent
reduction in fees. So we are gonna start our review. The Chair will allow, we do have
the various departments with us here this afternoon. We will allow them to join us in the
front. This would be DSA and Parks ... and Planning? If you can please join us in
the .. .in the front. .. so you can provide comment?
NOTE:

Pause while the Director of Public Works and Planning Director approached.
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CHAIR MATEO: ... Members, as ... as the Departments come forward-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: --I know, 1 know you looked through the, the draft. There's, we're gonna be
dealing with about 15 items in it. A good number of 'em is changing a word. So it's, it's
not as convoluted or compromising. And of course we have, we all ...we will be dealing
with each segment relative to the percent of the fee. That is where discussion should
occur. At this point, the Chair would like to recognize the Director of Planning,
Mr. Jeff Hunt. And also with us this afternoon, we have Mr. Arakawa, the Director for
Public Works. And, gentlemen, would ... Chair would allow you the opportunity to
comment on the proposed draft bill. And we'll start with Mr. Hunt.
MR. HUNT: ... Good afternoon. I've got to be honest with you. 1 just got back from vacation
and 1 have not had adequate time to review the bills. So rather than offer some
half-baked ideas, I, I'll just punt.
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: ... We like half-baked .. . (laughter) . ..
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Hunt. We will, yeah, I, 1 guess you can
just. .. participate, 1 mean, not "participate", join in and, with the discussion that will
follow in a little bit. Mr. Arakawa, have you had the chance to review the bill? And
would you provide us comments?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair...we ...responded to the Committee's ... questions regarding the
incentive program for the residential workforce housing ordinance. And we did provide
some data to the Committee regarding the amount of fees that would apply for a typical
single-family dwelling. And that transmittal is in your binder, dated July 23 rd •• .2007.
We were asked to give a number for several fees. And 1 can just briefly go over them for
the record .
. . . We basically took our data ...
CHAIR MATEO:
Members--excuse me.
Members,
July 23 rd , 2007. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

III

your binders, July, letter of

MR. ARAKAWA: We, we, we basically based our data on a typicaI3-bedroom, 112 bath type of
dwelling. And the fees that you have before you just represent an average cost for all
single-family dwellings from 2002 to 2006. So .. .1 can just run those by you. Basically,
for a driveway... permit fee, we're talking basically 15 bucks for the fee. This is based,
it's basically a flat fee for the construction and repair of residential driveway. There's a
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wastewater assessment fee for the WailukuIKahuluilPaia Districts. And that fee for a
typical dwelling would come out to 1,599 dollars and 50 cents. And this is based
on.. .4 dollars and 57 cents per gallon times a typical 350 gallons per day usage.
· . . We also have a wastewater assessment fee for the Kihei/WailealMakena Districts.
And this is based on 4 dollar 65 cents a gallon times 350 gallons per day. And there's
also a transmission assessment. .. fee. And Kihei is basically broken down into six
different zones. And the amount of the transmission fee depends how far you are from
the main pump station at Kalama Park. Basically the system in Kihei runs along
South Kihei Road and Wailea Alanui. And everything gets either gravity-flowed or
pumped to Kalama Park. And from there it, there's a force main that goes up to
the ... treatment plant.
· .. There's no charge for the fire plan review fee. Electrical permit fee ...typical fee
would run about 163 dollars. And plumbing... plumbing permit fee ...roughly about
65 bucks. These are all based on component charges. And it really depends on what
kind of component, components are included within a typical house. But these are some
rough amounts as far as fees that are concerned. Building permit fee ...rough cost would
be about 1,094 dollars and 50 cents. We ...took an average value of 230,000 dollars.
And...by Budget ordinance, this is based on, the fee is based on 639 dollars and 50 cents
for the first 100,000 dollars of valuation, plus 3 dollars and 50 cents for each additional
1,000 dollars of building permit value ...valuation. There's also building plan review
fee ...which is 25 percent of the building permit fee. That comes out to 273 dollars and
63 cents. And grading and grubbing permit fee ...which the average fee for those houses
between 2002 and 2006 was 67 bucks. So ... and, and this is based on 15 dollars per 100
cubic yards of... grading or... fill that's basically proposed. So we've ...the average
came out to about, oh, roughly 450 cubic yards or so. So that's basically a summary of
our comments.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. We're gonna open the floor to questions.
followed by Ms. Johnson.

Ms. Anderson,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Urn ... so ...Mr. Arakawa, are you
saying that the grubbing and grading permit fee is based on the .. .
· .. the amount of... fill or excavation ... the estimated cubic feet or cubic yards?
MR. ARAKAWA: The, the charge is, yeah, based on the amount of cubic yards of either fill
or...uh... or cut that's, you know, involved.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: . . . Okay. And do ... do you know .. .if any... any
affordable housing ... projects or portions of projects have been built using the Plan
Review Waiver process?
NOTE:

Silence.
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MR. ARAKAWA: ... Urn ...right now ... no. If you're talking about the Plan Review Waiver
process for a project. .. a number of units ... uh ... the answer would be "no".
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Urn ...what about individual. .. affordable homes?
Individual homes built in an affordable project. .. you know, owner-builder.
MR. ARAKAWA: ... I'd have to go and check the files and see, and we can report back to the
Committee if you'd like.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it's not something that you would normally encounter?
MR.ARAKAWA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Milton, because we generally try to charge fees ... so
that they cover the cost of the actual services or at least. .. you know attempt to cover the
cost of services that we're delivering for these various categories, have you done... cost
analysis in these various areas to see if the fees that we're charging at this point in time
actually cover the cost of the services that your various departments are rendering?
MR. ARAKAWA: ... Urn ...this issue was discussed somewhat during the Budget session. I
can tell you the wastewater fees are basically... were basically derived from
improvements that were done to the plant and then subsequent developments that come in
have to pay their pro rata share to basically pay back the County. As far as the other fees,
though, that I mentioned ...the driveway permit fee, the electrical, plumbing, building
permit, plan review, and the grading fees, those fees have not been reviewed in quite
some time. And...basically if you look at the operations within DSA, those fee, those
fees do not pay for the entire cost of operations. So it's basically been set. ..based on the
annual budget, but they don't pay for the entire cost of operations presently.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate that. And one of the considerations,
Mr. Chair, in even just looking at this today is .. .if I had as a decision-maker a better idea
of what the actual costs were that we're talking about, I would feel more comfortable
discussing this. Right now, I understand the principle or the goal and objective, but for
me ...who's going to pay the costs? And if we're looking at more affordable housing
projects coming on line ... that places the Department in deficit in terms of their actual
operating capital, the budgetary needs for our personnel if these fees need to be adjusted
upward. So my basic concern in just even engaging in the discussion is .. .I don't even
know if the fees that we're collecting currently ... (laughter) . .. are sufficient to continue
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the services. And that's where .. .I don't mind engaging in the discussion ... but for me as
one decision maker, I would need to know what those amounts are. My second concern
is lot of times we give exemptions or we give benefits--the "give-mes". We do that, and
yet what assurance is there that we have that these cost reductions actually end up
resulting in a reduction in the cost of the units that are being delivered to the individuals.
And it's my understanding that under 201H, because that's not 100 percent affordable
housing, my view has always been, like for park assessment particularly...they come and
they ask us for reductions where appropriate, so we make those adjustments. There's
also the potential, because there's a certain amount of market-priced housing.. .my belief
is the market-priced housing can be adjusted so that what we deliver in terms of the
affordable parameters, we should be able to at least deliver those homes at the cost that
we're required to--or, the developer should. So those are my comments about just the
general subject matter. I understand where you're going and I don't mean to pour cold
water .. .(laughter) . .. on the subject, but. .. you know, if you can understand my
concerns, that's where I'm coming from--about engaging in a conversation when we
don't even know ... {laughter} . .. what the basics are right now.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: --thank you. Appreciate your, your comments. Mr.... Arakawa, in, in
providing the information to us, had...had the Director considered what the impact
would be, say, with a 20, 30, 40, 50 percent reduction in the fees in terms of your
Department budget and how your Department would operate without, without these fees
or a portion thereof?
MR. ARAKAWA: Urn ...right now, the fees do not, as I mentioned, do not pay for the entire
cost of operations, all of the Development Services Administration. If the Committee
wants a dollar amount as to ...how it would affect the ... you know, the, the revenues that
we receive .. .I can, I should get back to you in writing on that. And I think that's
important information for the Committee to have.
CHAIR MATEO: Uh-huh. Uh-huh. Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. When we were doing the Budget
review, that's one of the items that was kind of glaring in regards to, we haven't changed
fees for I don't know how long now. And we even hadn't had a chance to even amend
the ...rate fees and schedules. So that's one of the action plans that the Administration
has in reviewing the current fees that are charged for building homes or, or ...
. . . uh ... getting permits. So the Department as it stands, in fact all of the departments
that have fee schedules are being asked to review presently... you know 'cause we
haven't changed it for, I don't know, probably a decade--to review so that at least we
capture the cost in doing the business in regards to permit fees and, and, and the like.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, additional questions for the Department?
· .. See, seeing none ... the, the Chair is gonna ask Mr. Hunt to provide a comment for us
before he, he leaves us this afternoon.
MR. HUNT: Thanks, Mr. Chair. The, when the Planning staff did review this draft bill earlier
in the year, it was noted that the bill only applies to permits that are under the purview of
the Public Works Department. And that's really how it should be because the housing
ordinance, the Workforce Housing ordinance essentially makes every project an
affordable housing project. So from the Planning Department's perspective, if you made
an exemption for affordable housing projects from Planning fees, essentially everything
would be exempt from Planning fees. And so it wouldn't work. Having said that, a
number of jurisdictions I've worked at have subsidized or helped or assisted affordable
housing development through the use of lower fees or even waiving fees altogether. So I
would urge you to go down this road. It just doesn't seem applicable to the Planning
Department. As Mr. Pontanilla pointed out, we are going to be reviewing our fees to
make sure that there is not a contradiction because as I understand it, our existing fee
structure has, has an exemption for affordable housing projects. So we'll, we will
address that.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hunt. Members, questions for Mr. Hunt? Thank you .. .(end
of tape, start 2B) . .. Seeing none, Members, we're gonna...we're gonna walk through,
we're gonna start walking through the pages.
· .. We're gonna start with Page 1 of the draft ... cover, the cover page. If you'll notice,
the only... the only change in this particular item is the very first sentence that
reads: residential workforce housing unit. We have added the word "unit" in the
definition, and we have deleted the words "residential developments" and added the word
a, the words "a unit".
· .. We have--Members, any... any problems, any concerns with...with the, this change?
· .. Do we have consensus to move to the others?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Consensus.
CHAIR MATEO: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Consensus.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Page 2, Members. 12.08.050, Permit--Fee. The first
fee we're looking at is driveway fee. And that driveway fee as described by
Mr. Arakawa, it's a 15 dollar fee.
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COUNCILMEMBER

: Uh-huh.

CHAIR MATEO: ... We're gonna move to Item C. Item C, we are deleting the word "city"
and adding the word "County" to this item. Any problems with, with that change?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Consensus.
CHAIR MATEO: We have consensus? We'll move on.
. . . Thank you. Item D, we're adding a residential workforce housing unit as defined in
Chapter 2.96, Maui County Code, shall be assessed a percentage of the fee as set forth in
the annual budget. This is where Ms ...Ms. Johnson's concern comes in at this
point. ..how we would be establishing this percentage at this point without getting a
cumulative understanding of what the actual impact is. If there is further concern, the
Chair would like to ... to hear those concerns at this point.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR MATEO: ... Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It looks like how all this is written is they're gonna be
assessed a percentage of the current fee. So are we gonna try to be consistent and pick a
percentage?
CHAIR MATEO: Well, that was the Chair's intent, which I thought it would have been the
easier thing to do for two reasons. And, and I stated the reasons earlier. One, is that it is
consistent with the 20lH.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MATEO: And, two, in the old 2.86 part of the Code, there was a provision, and the
So because it was consistent, the Chair's
provision read:
or half the fee.
recommendation would be the 50 percent. But that is ... up to the body to ... to decide.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I mean, I would go with the 50 percent, but I would
still wanna see an update, as Ms. Johnson asked for.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you know that mayor may not happen between now
and budget, but at least we're discounting what's currently there to 50 percent to make it
palatable. And I think-CHAIR MATEO: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that's fair. As you said, it's in 20IH and... and 2.86.
So ...
CHAIR MATEO: ... Okay-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... my comment.
CHAIR MATEO: --yeah, go ahead, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question is because 20IH comes before us as a body
anyway to ask for all these exemptions and waivers of fees ...
. . . is this its substitution of that now so that they automatically get it without ...
NOTE:

Pause.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... Because... see, to me the whole purpose of having that
discussion where they come in for the waivers is to do what we're doing here because
each development is different. Some of the units are very... you know ... {laughter} . .. I
mean, they, they run the full spectrum where there's very expensive units coupled with
modestly priced units. You know, I look at Mr. Spencer's project and you know in
comparison to a Kapalua Mauka or something of that sort where you're looking at a
completely different pricing structure. So my concern is that we're trying to establish a
uniform policy and yet the housing projects that we're seeing are not uniform ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... in the way they're presented. So it's kind of difficult to
just create a policy and then say it applies to the big boys .. .(laughter) . .. as well as the
little guys.
CHAIR MATEO: Uh-huh-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It seems kind of unfair.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, but the, the 20IH is technically a State ... a State review process. And
usually, in the past when it got down to us, all we had to do in the past was say "yea" or
"nay". We couldn't really amend. We now have the opportunity to modify these 20IH
that come before us. Now, the ... what we're trying to do is we're trying to complete the
phase two of the current residential workforce housing policy. We're trying to complete
it because one of the commitments we made was we will come back and will start
addressing ... addressing the need to provide incentives for the development community.
We started with these fees, one, because in all the times I've been asking for Members to
submit, nobody submitted. So the Chair submitted.

- 37 -

POLICY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 14, 2007

· .. You know, this is what we're working with because we need to show our good faith
that we are making an earnest effort in trying to complete what we have virtually
created--the residential workforce housing policy. Which we all know is one of the
toughest housing policies in the State.
· .. This is completing the next phase. And if you take a look, if you took a look at the,
the fees we're addressing, with the exception of Parks, these fees are not. .. really the, the
big ticket items. But it was a start because in addition to this now, we still need to go
back to what we talked about--the density bonuses and, and the like. So this is just the
first part. And, and I, I. . .I know what you're, I know exactly what you're talking about,
but. .. you know if we don't have a consensus at this point to just deal with a percentage
now, then we don't need to complete this at this point because we're not gonna get
nowhere at this point. Until the Members submit your recommendations to this
body--and we're gonna have to find the time again to come back and reschedule this for,
for another visit. Yeah? Ms. Johnson, followed-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes-CHAIR MATEO: --by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. And, and I totally understand. That's why I
prefaced my earlier comments by saying that, you know, I understand why you're
bringing this forward.
· . . But the one component, as I stated earlier, is that we need to know to what extent
financially we are, or the taxpayers are subsidizing various housing... units. I personally
would rather see some type and, and ... of a sliding scale based on the selling prices of the
market-priced units. Because even if I look at an affordable unit, some of the units are
quite reasonable in their prices and I know that Mr. Spencer actually took great pains to
deliver many of his units. Even though costs had escalated, he basically... you know,
reduced his overall profit. Most developers are not like that. They will just simply say,
well, I'm gonna add it on to whatever the other costs are or I'm not certainly gonna take
any reduction of what comes to my profit margin. So ... my point in asking the questions
is if we give the reductions, what assurance is there. You know, who's going to monitor
that these cost reductions are actually reflected in the affordable housing prices? Because
I wanna see on that affordable component a direct correlation .. . {laughter} . .. between
the reductions that we're giving in the price of those units. So if something by affordable
scale is supposed to sell for 249,000 dollars and we're giving 7 or 8 or 9 thousand dollars
worth of give-mes, I expect that cost of that unit to be less. So I wanna make sure that if
we do this, that somewhere within the context of this conversation that it is going to be
reflected in the actual cost to the recipients of these homes.
CHAIR MATEO: Uh-huh. The only response I can give you at this point is when the unilateral
is drafted, the ... direction from the Department will be indicative of what we as a body
had approved in the residential workforce housing. The fonnulas are broken down where
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there are specifics in terms of what a home can sell for based on one's income bracket.
So that is the assurance--that the policy is dictative enough to assert in.. .in its
requirements what a home can, can sell for based on our HUD guidelines. And, again,
broken down to the Molokai, Lanai, Hana areas as well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and, and I understand that. But my question to
you is that if this is to actually achieve a result that will get the prices down for the
affordable units, I would like some kind of accounting or some means whereby the
person who's purchasing that unit is able to realize that. .. you know, I, if you're saying
that, yes, it's gonna go directly into the pocket of the developer... and that's where the
savings is going, then I need to know that right away.
CHAIR MATEO: Uh-huh-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 'Cause my whole goal and objective in reducing the cost of
affordable housing overall is to benefit the recipients of the housing.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And if its an incentive to the developer and its gonna come
off his bottom line ...
. . . then I just need to know that.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Well, you know, Ms. Johnson, that was, that was all part of our initial
discussion when we went through the policy. And the whole discussion was in order for
us to get, we gotta give .
. . . And part ofthe give is because they're not wanting to build affordable homes. We've
gotta have an incentive for them to wanna help us meet the goal. We're not ready to give
away the store. I think we made it real clear a long time ago. But we've gotta be able to
step up now...because we have, we have taken, at this point. Now we need to give back
and say it's gonna happen, but it's gonna happen on these terms. And what, you know,
this is why it's before us--to come up with what we're willing, you know, at this point to
say we can live with and provide the incentives for these developers that we've gone to
and, and you know want them to build our affordable homes. So, yeah, I don't know if
the term is, you know, putting money in their pocket. I don't wanna use that term.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: But you know, it's all part of the discussions that we've had for the last two
years.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, and, and I understand. And I'm not gonna... flog at that
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CHAIR MATEO: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . .. because I, I understand that we wanna
create incentives. But I think one of the other incentives that we spoke about was ease of
processing. You know, the timeliness. And to me if this expedites it where now this
substitute, they can't come forward and ask for any more give-meso .. and that expedites
the process for them...well, I guess maybe that's the price we have to pay.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. I appreciate your, your comments. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. And I think we call it partnership.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter). ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Urn ... (cleared throat) . .. the question that I had is that
the intention of the ...the Chair at this time is to set a percentage based on the existing
rates that we have currently--until we make adjustments to it.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: ... Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. Just presenting another side of discussions
that I've had with developers. It ...
. . . yes, it's really, really important and I totally understand what Member Johnson is
saying about wanting to help the recipient get the best possible price on a home. But one
of the things I heard when we were discussing about this ordinance--and you know I was
not on the Council at that time, but still you know out there listening--was that one of the
things that developers are concerned about is they wanna know the rules before they play
the game. And if we establish the percentages in the incentives, then they know that you
know if they develop affordable housing that they'll get a 50 percent reduction on this or
a 30 percent or whatever it is. Otherwise, we'll be back to, pretty much, where we are
now with each case, you know, is it 20, is it 10, is it nothing, what is it. And I think they
wanted kind of to know so that they would know what they were getting into before they
began the idea of doing affordable housing. So I just wanted to state that.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, additional comments, questions?
... Ms. Anderson?
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COUNClLMEMBER ANDERSON: I know this probably presents the hard way to do this ...
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter} ... and ...
· .. but you know .. .I think that. . .I do agree with Ms. Johnson in that. .. you know I
know we're trying to provide incentives and ...
· . . but one shop, size does not fit all. The subsidy for a house at 80 percent of the
income .. .is gonna be greater than the subsidy for a house at 140 percent of the income.
And for those housing developments, market-priced housing that is a million dollars and
up ...
· .. there's a greater profit margin in the market-priced housing than there is in, say,
housing built for 400,000. So it would seem that a sliding scale would be appropriate,
especially for ... you know I'd like to see us waive the fees at a greater level for those
houses that are built at 80 percent and below. You know, I kind of did an average here,
and...with the Public Works fees and the Park fees ...just kind of taking an average,
although it's a big scale, Park fees ranged from ... 2,000 dollars per unit on Molokai ...
· .. to 26,795 dollars per unit. . .in West Maui. So that's a huge range. And of course
that's based on the real property values in the area.
· .. And I guess we should find out when Parks has time to tell us when this was ...you
know, reevaluated ...
· .. per community plan area. But at any rate, so let's just say 4,000 in fees on an average
from Public Works, and let's say 15,000 dollars ... approximate. So we're looking
at. .. somewhere in the neighborhood of 20,000 dollars in permit fees per unit--just to
give us an overall idea of the cost that's tacked on to each unit just to get permit fees.
· .. Urn .. .is there, is there any reduction? I mean, this is all per unit or per... cubic yard
or whatever. Um .. .I don't know, it seems like we could do some kind of a... a scale that
we're reducing it greater at the lower end of the economic scale and not so low at the
higher end because you know they're not. .. they're still making a profit, Mr. Chairman,
when they're selling a house for 400, 500 thousand dollars as affordable. So I don't
know why we should be giving them any breaks on that because they're making a profit
on it. And ...
· .. it may not be the profit they want, but it's the housing we need. So ...
NOTE:

Pause.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... I. . .I agree with Ms. Johnson. I, I think that we need to
have some kind of sliding scale. At first, I thought 50 percent was fair, but it really isn't.
You know? 'Cause I don't, I don't think we should giving, be giving a break on permit
fees for housing that's gonna be selling in the 400 ... 500 thousand dollar price range.
Where I do think we should do it if they're welling to sell housing in the 180, 225
thousand dollar price range ... and give, you know, give the bulk of the incentive at that
end... ofthe affordable scale.
CHAIR MATEO: ... Thank you. Members, additional. .. additional comments?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
. . . For me .. .it, it you know, if you selling a market-value home ... you know, you
shouldn't. .. get a break. As far as the affordable housing area, if the developer is gonna
provide 50 percent affordable housing, then ...
. . . doesn't matter if the median income is ... 80 percent below, 120 percent below. The
50 percent. .. on the per unit would amount to big money. And ...just incent the
affordable housing side rather than the total project itself in regards to ...reducing rates
and fees.
CHAIR MATEO:
Uh-huh.
You're right.
Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
additional. .. additional questions ... comments?

Members,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I got one.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Depart...Department of Hawaiian Home Lands ... do
they pay any fees in regards to ... Of in creating affordable housing?
CHAIR MATEO: I believe their exempt.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Total exempt?
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. I mean, not only from fees, but usually the first seven years in real
property taxes-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay-CHAIR MATEO: --as well.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --fine. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Uh-huh. Additional questions or comments, Members? Members, the Chair
is gonna ask. .. one more time... all the Members, please submit your written comments
to the Chair. The next time the Chair brings this item up, if you had not presented
anything to us, I will ask for the vote to move something forward because I have waited
for months and I have not gotten anything, with the exception of Chairman sUbmitting to
us. So at this particular point in time, Members, with no objections, the Chair is going
to--yeah, hey, Mr. Kushi, go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. KUSHI: Well, Mr. Chair, do you want our comments in writing... our office's-CHAIR MATEO: Well, you know, if you're ... you're wanting to share it with us right now-MR. KUSHI: Well, I-CHAIR MATEO: --to go on the record-MR. KUSHI: Maybe it'd be better in writing.
CHAIR MATEO: In writing?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Then, please if you, if you could as well. Mr. Matsui, thank you
for coming and joining us. We, you know, I, we haven't gotten to the point of being able
to ask you questions. The Chair would like you to provide comment in writing. You did
submit, the Department submitted to us the park assessment fees list. And if you could
please provide comment to us, what it would mean to the Department if we started to,
say, reduce this fee by a percentage .. .in terms of how it would impact the Department's
budget or operations. If you can provide that to us as well? Members, at this
point--Ms. Anderson, go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks, Chair. Ijust would like to ask Mr. Matsui--on the
July 23 rd submittal, these figures for the various community plan areas, Mr. Matsui, are
they, when were they calculated? I mean, how current are they?
MR. MATSUI: These figures are good for Fiscal Year '08, which starts July 1St, '07 and ends
June 30, '08.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they were calculated for this Fiscal Year.
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MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Yeah, go ahead, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and if Mr. Matsui or someone in his Department could
also take a look at when we've had affordable units come forward, I know that I, just,
just, say, maybe like the last. .. two or three years .. .if we could have a, an amount of
park fees that were waived for affordable housing? I would just be real curious. I, I
don't think there have been that many. But if we could just have list and then the
amounts of those fees that were waived-CHAIR MATEO: Jesse Spencer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --so ...
CHAIR MATEO: Jesse was the last one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I think we should have it.
CHAIR MATEO: ... Mr. Matsui, would you, would you recall?
MR. MATSUI: The only waiver is ...would be by the Council through the 20IG-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . (inaudible) . ..
MR. MATSUI: --process.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The, that's what I mean, Mr. Matsui. But do you have a list
of those that, you know, have come forward where we actually have not collected that?
Or is it better to get it, Mr. Chair, from our...Department?
CHAIR MATEO: 1. ..1. . .I believe we, we'll try to get it. We'll try to get that information.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Because there's-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I, I don't wanna burden-CHAIR MATEO: There's definitely not many to find. So it should be, I don't think it's gonna
be that difficult for us to find--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I, I think there's just been, maybe, a half dozen at
the most that have had-CHAIR MATEO: Less than that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --waIvers.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, less than that-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. I'd just be curious to know what that
amount is. And then...1'11 write you the rest of my comments and questions. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you. Additional questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I, I just want to ... share a few comments if
you'd permit me, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, again, you know that my submittal was just to assist you
and the Committee to have some type of starting point under the fee ... fee structure. I
would say there's many ...
. . . well, I don't know "how many", but I know there are other means to create incentives
to make this affordable component as successful as we had in... yeah, as our intentions
have been. I would say, Members ... you know, what, what might assist. .. this
Committee would be for us to view how we as a, as a policy, as a philosophy we wanna
approach ... this component, Mr. Chairman. While I would say up front, yes, we may not
collect the revenues that we normally would from the fee program to ... take care of some
of the ...
. . . amenities, services ... facilities that. .. we expect of any residential subdivision in this
County, we have by choice and by decision either deferred some of those
improvements--and we can look at all types of zoning... approvals that we have given in
the past that have deferred improvement schedules. Like the Waiale Drive project. We
can look at things that going across lao Stream. We can look at things ...with
the ...treatment plants and everything else. But we made a decision. For this component,
Mr. Chairman, I would say if one of the suggestions--and my intention was that they
would be assessed nothing for the fee ...
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· .. as one end of the spectrum, as an incentive. And my idea was eventually we're
gonna make it back on the affordable component or the affordable resident sector through
property taxation...that there would be catch up down the road. Because normally,
Chairman, if you look at the cost of our improvements, even those that we look at
community plan regions for park improvements ...most time ... most time it comes with a
General Fund subsidy because the park assessment fee by itself cannot carry the load of
a, any district that needs major improvements. So why, yes, we are collecting a
component. But it's at the same time we have either agreed to bond... or use General
Fund supplements to still take care of certain needs of our community. I believe,
Chairman, if we are going to make a directional change from lUXUry housing
development to residential workforce affordable units, then the incentives make sense.
And when it comes too successful, I would say we can consider things like sliding scale,
what not. But to get it off the ground, you have to give that hot prod... you know where,
we all know where, to get action. Okay? And right now that prod is ice cold, so it's not
moving anybody. But let's go put the heat and show them we're willing to give you the
maximum incentive under this ... for the fees under this component. And if other
Members come up with some other things, what is, then, their excuse not to perform?
· .. I'm trying to take away that "cry baby" excuse for the out, Mr. Chairman--well, you
didn't give me enough break 'cause you know if you did that would have made the
difference. Well, we're gonna take away those cry baby excuses ...
· .. and say we've provided you maximum incentives through fee structure, we might
wanna even give consideration of how we approach real property tax ...
· .. as a way. Because not only can we help them through the sales of the partiCUlar lot,
but we can help affordabiIity to the kamaaina resident by saying you qualify...maybe for
the next year we'll waive 50 percent of your property tax. And we, of course we going
have those that say we're taking away money from the County. But if this is brand new
inventory, Chairman ...
· .. we're not collecting taxes yet on the improvements.
· .. So I still feel there'll be a slight net gain in our revenue stream. But we helping the
local guy who bought in there ... a chance to ramp up because we're gonna give 'em,
maybe, a break on property tax side. For the buyer, not for the developer.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And isn't that one of the intent--how to help the local guy buy and
maintain that unit? So I would say if we can look at big picture, Chairman, and not only
what we're gonna give a developer for an affordable unit, but what we may also provide
the renter or home buyer . .. as incentives to maintain affordability. Then I would say we,
we're really doing our job. And I would just ask the Committee to consider that broader
spectrum of the picture. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Hokama.
MR. KUSHI: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: In a minute and a half? Okay.
Members, additional. .. additional comments?

Thank you very much, Mr. Hokama.

... No?
COUNCILMEMBER

: Recommendation?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, just one ...
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one .. .if, Mr. Matsui, when you ... come back to us at
the next meeting, could you give us, maybe, what these rates were five years ago and ten
years ago?
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... I mean, I don't. .. that shouldn't be too hard, right?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. MATSUI: ... Okay. Urn ...
. . . I don't know if it's so much the timing as there were different formulas.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, there were different formulas ten years ago?
MR. MATSUI: Yes. And so-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Five years ago, even?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Then it's not comparable .
. . . Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
NOTE:

Pause.
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CHAIR MATEO: ... You ready?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. I had to ... stall. Mr....Mr. Kushi needed to put his
thoughts together.
MR. KUSHI: .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi?
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. KUSHI: .. .(laughter) . .. Mr. Chair, thank you. Promise--minute and a half, no more.
CHAIR MATEO: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. KUSHI: Unless ... unless you ask me. Instead of wasting time and effort, I can give you
my comments now. On your draft bill, at Page 6... up to that point, it's fine. All you're
doing is putting a percentage and taking it off the budgeted... annually budget set fees.
But at Page 6 .. .(end of tape, start 3A) . .. Section 16.26.107.2. In essence ... under
"Exceptions", it. . .it states affordable housing projects .. .in accordance with Chapter
As you recall,
2.86 of the Maui County Code shall be given one-half.
you ... your... affordable housing policy, 2.96 .. .deleted, really, the meaty section of
2.86. So in essence what remains in 2.86, Maui County Code, are County housing
projects, not. .. the, fee simple. But. .. so that being the case, you may still wanna give
them 50 percent off. So I would say...recommend instead of saying "affordable housing
projects built", et cetera, et cetera, it should be "County housing projects" ...to make it
clear. Uh...then on Page 7 under the parks ... exemptions--this one is a more, more
intriguing in that, one, your proposal. .. sets the percentage to be deducted from the
annual budget. As you know, the parks assessments are not set in the annual budget.
They're set in the ordinance itself. So it's ... should be restated. The more crucial
question is do you exempt all the units in the subdivision or do you just exempt the ...
. . . affordable units? Because, you know ... so that has to be kind of fleshed out,
whatever the Council pleases. Those are my two comments, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you very much, Mr. Kushi. That was ... that was worth
waiting for. That was really-ALL: ... (laughter). ..
CHAIR MATEO: That was ... (inaudible due to interruption)--
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ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. KUSHI: And in less than a minute and a half.
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, additional questions?
... Seeing no questions, Members, with no objections the Chair will defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MV)
ACTION:

DEFER pending written recommendations/comments from Members
and further discussion.

CHAIR MATEO: We've completed the business for today. Are there any announcements?
. . . Seeing...hearing none, Members,
August 14th , 2007 is adjourned .. .(gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

the Policy Committee meeting for

3:47 p.m.

Transcribed by: Camille Sakamoto
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